MINISTRY OF HIGHER AND SECONDARY SPECIAL EDUCATION OF THE REPUBLIC OF UZBEKISTAN



URGENCH STATE UNIVERSITY FACULTY OF PHILOLOGY FINAL QUALIFICATION WORK

For defending bachelor degree on

5120100 - "Philology and teaching languages (the English language)"

Hakimbayeva Sevara Bakhrombek qizi

Theme: SYNTACTICAL PECULIARITIES OF APHORISMS IN ENGLISH

Scientific supervisor:

S.S. Ruzimbayev

Senior lecturer at the department

"Uzbek Linguistics"

at Urgench State University

Urgench 2017

CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION
CHAPTER ONE. ABOUT THE MODERN STUDY OF APHORISMS IN
LINGUISTICS
1.1. Notion of Aphorisms in a Language7
1.2. Functions of Aphorisms in a Language16
1.3. Cognitive Aspect in Exploration of English Aphorisms
CHAPTER TWO. SYNTACTIC AND SEMANTIC PECULIARITIES OF APHORISMS IN ENGLISH
2.1. Overview of Aphorisms
2.2. Syntactic Features of English Aphorisms
2.3. Semantic Features of Aphorisms
CONCLUSION
USED LITERATURE

Introduction

The development of science as a whole and a linguistic science, in particular is connected not only with the decision of actual scientific problems, but also with features of internal and foreign policy of the state, the maintenance of the state educational standards which are two generators of progress providing social economic society. It forms the society capable quickly to adapt in the modern world. [1]

Studying the peculiarities of aphorisms from the view point of syntax has always been one of the most important disputable and interesting problems of investigation of English and Uzbek grammar.

The history of humanity is a wonderful teacher because the whole experience of the previous generation is concentrated and generalized there. As the former President of Uzbekistan notes:

"Nowadays history is becoming a real teacher for the nation. The deeds and exploits of great ancestors stir historical memories, create a new civil conscience and from the ethical to be emulated". [2, 87]

Great steps forward were made in Uzbekistan in the last years. "The decree 1875" of the President of the Republic of Uzbekistan was issued on December 10, 2012.

The requirements of the CEFR have become the most important element in determining the contents of the programs of teaching foreign languages.

This graduation paper is devoted to the study of syntactic peculiarities of aphorisms in English language used in different context which represents a certain interest both for theoretical investigation and for practical usage. We have the full basis of approving that many linguists have brought the valuable contribution studying aphorisms and proverbs that has created necessary theoretical preconditions.

The actuality of the investigation is expressed on the one hand by the profound interest in learning the syntactic peculiarities of aphorisms in discourse, on the other hand by giving a detailed analysis of the semantic features of them in discourse in English and Uzbek.

The aim of this research is based on a detailed study of the syntactic peculiarities of aphorisms in discourse, and structured patterns with them, to reveal the differences between their distributional semantic functional properties in comparison of English and Uzbek languages.

According to this general aim the following particular tasks are put forward:

- Finding out the similarities and differences in the linguistic features of aphorisms relating to gain and loss in English and Uzbek in terms of syntactic and semantic features. However, the stylistic devices of aphorisms relating to gain and loss in English and Uzbek are simultaneously presented in semantic section.

- Providing Uzbek learners of English or English learners of Uzbek with a basic knowledge of the field to enable them to understand aphorisms thoroughly, as well as to use them effectively and naturally in their learning of these two languages, particularly in the subjects of translation.

This study attempts to achieve the following **objectives**:

- To list, describe and classify aphorisms in English and Uzbek.

- To investigate the syntactic and semantic features of Aphorisms in English and Uzbek. Some types of stylistic devices are also presented to clarify the sense relations of figuration aphorisms as mentioned above.

- To show the similarities and differences between English Aphorisms and Uzbek Aphorisms in terms of syntactic and semantic features.

- To suggest some ideas for teaching, learning and translating English aphorisms into Uzbek and vice versus.

The subject is the classification of aphorisms due to their meaning and their comparative analysis of English and Uzbek languages.

The methods of investigation used in this research are as following: complex approach to the study of the syntactic peculiarities of aphorisms in speech, including morphological, structural, distributional ways of analysis of the English language.

Methodological basis of the research is Decree of the President of Republic of Uzbekistan about the development of languages, education and science, the national program on a professional training and also basic researches inline filed of the theory of linguistics, in particular Theoretical Grammar of English and Comparative Typology of English and Uzbek Languages.

The novelty of the work. With the purpose of doing a research into syntactic and semantic features of English and Uzbek Aphorisms, this study could help:

- Uzbek learners of English and Uzbek have useful and significant knowledge of Aphorisms in terms of syntactic and semantic features in English and Uzbek.

- Uzbek learners of English and Uzbek use Aphorisms effectively and naturally in their learning process as well as in their daily life.

- To suggest some good implications for the better teaching and learning aphorisms in English and Uzbek.

Theoretical value is that it can serve as a basis of studying the syntactic peculiarities of aphorisms in English language. It will allow understanding the importance of studying syntactic and semantic peculiarities simultaneously.

The study is to answer the following questions:

1) What are the syntactic and semantic features of Aphorisms in English and Aphorisms in Uzbek?

2) What are the similarities and differences of Aphorisms in English and Uzbek in terms of syntactic and semantic features?

3) What are the implications for teaching, learning and translation of aphorisms to gain and loss?

Practical value of this work is that the theoretical statement of this paper can be used in delivering lectures and seminars on Theoretical grammar, Theory of linguistics, Linguistic typology etc.

Due to the time and resource constraints, my study is restricted to the investigation into Aphorisms in English and Uzbek in terms of syntactic and semantic features together with the cultural underlying reasons. Moreover, the

study explores 150 aphorisms in English and 150 aphorisms in Uzbek mainly collected from dictionaries, books and the Internet.

The structure of the given qualification paper consists of introduction, two chapters, conclusion which is followed by the list of literatures used in the course of research.

Introduction presents the actuality of the theme, the novelty and aim of the qualification paper; tasks, theoretical and practical value, material investigations, methods, statements to be proved and the structure of the qualification paper.

The first chapter consists of three paragraphs and gives general notes on aphorisms in English.

The second chapter deals with syntactic and semantic features of aphorisms due to their meaning in English.

CHAPTER ONE. About the Modern Study of Aphorisms in Linguistics

Aphoristic sentences are irregular sentences that can be found in many proverbs. Their common structural feature is the balancing of two equivalent constructions against each other (e.g. easy come, easy go). The two constructions of an aphorism can be classified in terms of one or more of the following types: (elliptical, conditional, imperatives, 'no --- no' model, verbless or anomalous and proportional).

This paper is devoted to the application of syntactic classifications of aphoristic sentences on some poetic aphorisms. It is also an attempt to settle the problem of the mystery of these sentences for the rare use of a specific heading for the syntactic study of these constructions in Arabic.

1.1. Notion of Aphorisms in a Language

The present study explores an investigation of aphoristic sentences in English. To shed the light on the definitions of some concepts here, aphorism on one hand is "a short phrase that says something true or wise". Aphorisms in addition, "in their economic expression of universal truths recognizable by all, made a didactic, declamatory style of poetry somewhat more accessible to a diverse audience", aphoristic sentences on the other hand are "irregular sentences that can be found in many proverbs". A considerable body of this paper highlights the syntax of aphoristic sentences.

The aim of this study is to prove the use of the English classifications of aphoristic sentences in Arabic aphorisms. Likewise, the study hypothesizes that Arabic Aphorisms can be studied in terms of the English aphoristic sentences' structures in Quirk et al. Paving the way to the present paper, The paper is limited to poetic aphorisms, to the syntactic use of aphoristic sentences.

Along the study of thirty quotations in this paper (i.e. one hundred and ten lines), Quirk et al.'s classification of aphoristic sentences has been adopted as a model. It is necessarily here to refer to the mystery of these sentences in Arabic aphorisms as well as the confusion of the prose and poetic styles of aphorisms in Arabic are the main problems leading to this study. Unlike English grammarians, Arabic grammarians do not group such constructions under a specific heading.

Aphorism can be defined as «a short phrase that says something true or wise" [22. 59]. [25, 15-16] also illustrates that it is a statement of some general principle, expressed memorably by considering much wisdom into few words. Aphorisms often take the form of a definition; an author who composes aphorisms is an aphorist. In addition, the concepts of 'proverb ' and 'maxim' may lead to that of aphorism. Thus, Baldick refers to a proverb as a short popular saying of 'unknown' authorship, expressing some general truth or superstition. He also highlights that Blake's "proverbs of Hell" are strictly speaking aphorisms, since they originate from a 'known' author. A Latin term for an aphorism or maxim is 'sententia' (sing) and 'sententiae (pl.) [33, 234].

Aphoristic sentences, as Quirk et al. [29, 48] declare, are irregular sentences that can be found in many proverbs. They also verify that their common structural feature is the balancing of two equivalent constructions against each other. Structurally speaking, an aphoristic sentence takes one of the following constructions:

a- Elliptical and/or correlative clauses of proportion:

1- The more, the merrier (i.e. the more there are of us, the merrier we are).

2- The sooner, the better.

3- The less said, the better.

4- The more haste, the less speed.

b- The verb is non-finite, the first part is semantically subordinate (conditional):

5- Nothing ventured, nothing gained.

6- Once bitten, twice shy.

7- Easy come, easy go.

8- Here today, gone tomorrow.

9- First come, first served.

c- The verbs are imperatives and the two clauses being in a conditional relationship:

10- Spare the rod, and spoil the child.

11- Love me, love my dog.

12- Marry in haste, repent at leisure.

13- Waste not, want not.

d- Both parts are verbless:

14- More haste, less speed (it can be regarded as a reduction of type 4).

15- No work, no money.

16- Like father, like son.

17- In for a penny, in for a pound.

18- Out of sight, out of mind.

19- So far, so good.

e- Anomalous sayings:

20- Better late than never.

21- No sooner said than done.

22- First things first.

23- Handsome is as handsome does (in which the adj. handsome is used in the two positions as if it were a noun).

f- The model of no....no:

24- No dinner, no dessert.

25- No homework, no TV.

Though they lead to the same purpose, aphorisms mostly belong to known authors, whereas proverbs belong to unknown ones. Not only prose as most studies denote, Arabic aphorisms can be poetic too. Each two Arabic poetic lines represent one aphorism: (e.g. "If you hear an inferior blaming me, it is evidence that I am superior".

This paper proves the hypothesis that aphorisms can be studied in terms of the structures of English aphoristic sentences in Quirk et al. [29]. The analyses of the target lines reveal the number of aphoristic sentences' repetition as follows: (21 proportional, 12 verbless and elliptical, 11 conditional, 10 "no - no" model, 2 imperatives and 2 non-finite (-ed participle). This count leads to the much used aphoristic sentences in Arabic poetic aphorisms respectively.

Aphorism is a statement of truth or opinion expressed in a concise and witty manner. The term is often applied to philosophical, moral and literary principles.

To qualify as an aphorism, it is necessary for a statement to contain a truth revealed in a terse manner. Aphoristic statements are quoted in writings as well as in our daily speech. The fact that they contain a truth gives them a universal acceptance. Scores of philosophers, politicians, writers, artists and sportsman and other individuals are remembered for their famous aphoristic statements.

Aphorisms often come with a pinch of humor, which makes them more appealing to the masses. Proverbs, maxims, adages and clichés are different forms of aphoristic statements that gain prevalence from generation to generation and frequently appear in our day-to-day speech.

Common Aphorism Examples

Let us look at some aphorism examples:

• Youth is a blunder; Manhood a struggle; Old age regret. [Benjamin Disraeli]

• Pride hath fall. [Proverb]

• The man who removes a mountain begins by carrying away small stones. [William Faulkner]

• Life's Tragedy is that we get old too soon and wise too late. [Benjamin Franklin]

• Yesterday is but today's memory, and tomorrow is today's dream. [Khalil Gibran]

• The simplest questions are the hardest to answer. [Northrop Frye]

• A proverb is no proverb to you till life has illustrated it. [John Keats]

• Words are, of course, the most powerful drug used by mankind. [Rudyard Kipling]

Examples of Aphorism in Literature

Many pieces of literature are appreciated for the aphorisms they contain which are often cited by scholars as well as laymen. Below are some examples of aphorisms in literature:

Example #1

Sir Francis Bacon excels in aphoristic style of writing. Possibly, his sayings are the most quoted of all. Read the following examples:

• "Studies serve for delight, for ornament and for ability." (Of Studies)

• "To use too many circumstances, ere one come to the matter, is wearisome, to use none at all, is Blunt."(Of Discourse)

• "Praise is the reflection of the virtue. But it is the reflection glass or body which give th the reflection."(Of Praise)

Example #2

Shakespeare does not fall behind any writer in the use of aphorisms in his plays. The use of abundant aphorisms testifies to his keen insight and judgment. Below are some examples:

• "Having nothing, nothing can he lose."(Henry VI)

• "Life is a tale told by an idiot — full of sound and fury, signifying nothing." (Macbeth)

• "Lord, what fools these mortals be!"(A Midsummer Night's Dream)

Example #3

An example of aphorism can be seen in "To kill a Mocking Bird" by Nelle Harper Lee. Atticus Finch tells her daughter:

"You never really understand a person until you consider things from his point of view – until you climb into his skin and walk around in it."

The above statement holds the truth, as we cannot claim to judge a person unless we understand the way he views the world and its affairs.

Example #4

Nafisa Haji provides us an example of aphorism in her novel "The Writing on My Forehead". Big Namina, a wise character, says:

"If? There is no if. There is only what is. What was? What will be."

We can perceive the truth in the above statement because it gives a message to always live in a moment. It tells us that it is useless to have regrets about the past and we should move on with our lives for a better present and future.

Example #5

Alexander Pope was a great aphorist of 18th century. Following are some memorable quotes from his works:

• "Tis education forms the common mind; just as the twig is bent, the tree's inclined." (Golden Treasury of the Familiar)

• "To err is human, to forgive divine." (An Essay on Criticism)

• "What Reason weaves, by Passion is undone." (Essay on Man and Other Poems)

• "Act well your part; there all the honour lies." (An Essay on Man)

As already mentioned in the above discussion, making use of aphorisms allows a writer to teach a philosophical or moral truth. The revealed truths prove relevant to human experiences of real life. Therefore, the readers relate the piece of literature to real life and become more fascinated and vigilant in their reading.

Moreover, as truths are universal, revealing general truths in literature, adds to their universal commendation. Motivational speeches quote aphorisms from such sources to inspire motivation among individuals. Here are an example to inspire motivation among individuals:

SINCE I accepted the honour of the invitation to deliver the opening address of your course, I have found no small difficulty in settling down on an appropriate subject. I half wrote a discourse on modern democracy,—how the rule of numbers is to be reconciled with the rule of sage judgment, and the passion for liberty and equality is to be reconciled with sovereign regard for law, authority, and order; and how our hopes for the future are to be linked to wise reverence for tradition and the past. But your secretary had emphatically warned me off all politics, and I feared that however carefully I might be on my guard against every reference to the burning questions of the hour, yet the clever eyes of political charity would be sure to spy out party innuendoes in the most innocent deliverances of purely abstract philosophy. Then for a day or two I lingered over a subject in a little personal incident. One Saturday night last summer I found myself dining with an illustrious statesman on the Welsh border, and on the Monday following I was seated under the acacias by the shore of the Lake of Geneva, where Gibbon, a hundred years ago almost to the day, had, according to his own famous words, laid down his pen after writing the last lines of his last page, and there under a serene sky, with the silver orb of the moon reflected from the waters, and amid the silence of nature, felt his joy at the completion of an immortal task, dashed by melancholy that he had taken everlasting leave of an old and agreeable companion. It was natural that I should meditate on the contrast that might be drawn between great literary performance and great political performance, between the making of history and the writing of it,—a contrast containing matter enough not only for one, but for a whole series of edifying and instructive discourses. But there were difficulties here too, and the edifying discourse remains, like many another, incomplete.

So I am going to ask you after all to pass a tranquil hour with me in pondering a quiet chapter in the history of books. There is a loud cry in these days for clues that shall guide the plain man through the vast bewildering labyrinth of printed volumes. Everybody calls for hints what to read, and what to look out for in reading. Like all the rest of us, I have often been asked for a list of the hundred best books, and the other day a gentleman wrote to me to give him by return of post that far more difficult thing—a list of the three best books in the world. Both the hundred and the three are a task far too high for me; but perhaps you will let me try to indicate what, among so much else, is one of the things best worth hunting for in books, and one of the quarters of the library where you may get on the scent. Though tranquil, it will be my fault if you find the hour dull, for this particular literary chapter concerns life, manners, society, conduct, human nature, our aims, our ideals, and all besides that is most animated and most interesting in man's busy chase after happiness and wisdom.

What is wisdom? That sovereign word, as has often been pointed out, is used for two different things. It may stand for knowledge, learning, science, systematic reasoning; or it may mean, as Coleridge has defined it, common sense in an uncommon degree; that is to say, the unsystematic truths that come to shrewd, penetrating, and observant minds, from their own experience of life and their daily commerce with the world, and that is called the wisdom of life, or the wisdom of the world, or the wisdom of time and the ages. The Greeks had two words for these two kinds of wisdom: one for the wise who scaled the heights of thought and knowledge; another for those who, without logical method, technical phraseology, or any of the parade of the Schools, whether "Academics old and new, Cynic, Peripatetic, the sect Epicurean, or Stoic severe," held up the mirror to human nature, and took good counsel as to the ordering of character and of life.

Mill, in his little fragment on "Aphorisms," has said that in the first kind of wisdom every age in which science flourishes ought to surpass the ages that have gone before. In knowledge and methods of science each generation starts from the point at which its predecessor left off; but in the wisdom of life, in the maxims of good sense applied to public and to private conduct, there is, said Mill, a pretty nearly equal amount in all ages.

If this seem doubtful to any one, let him think how many of the shrewdest moralities of human nature are to be found in writings as ancient as the apocryphal Book of the Wisdom of Solomon and of Jesus the Son of Sirach; as Æsop's Fables; as the oracular sentences that are to be found in Homer and the Greek dramatists and orators; as all that immense host of wise and pithy saws which, to the number of between four and five thousand, were collected from all ancient literature by the industry of Erasmus in his great folio of Adages. As we turn over these pages of old time, we almost feel that those are right who tell us that everything has been said, that the thing that has been is the thing that shall be, and there is no new thing under the sun. Even so, we are happily not bound to Schopenhauer's gloomy conclusion (*Werke*, v. 332), that "The wise men of all times have always said the same, and the fools, that is the immense majority, of all times, have always done the same, that is, to say the opposite of what the wise have said; and that is why

Voltaire tells us that we shall leave this world just as stupid and as bad as we found it when we came here."

It is natural that this second kind of wisdom, being detached and unsystematic, should embody itself in the short and pregnant form of proverb, sentence, maxim, and aphorism. The essence of aphorism is the compression of a mass of thought and observation into a single saying. It is the very opposite of dissertation and declamation; its distinction is not so much ingenuity as good sense brought to a point; it ought to be neither enigmatical nor flat, neither a truism on the one hand, nor a riddle on the other. These wise sayings, said Bacon, the author of some of the wisest of them, are not only for ornament, but for action and business, having a point or edge, whereby knots in business are pierced and discovered. And he applauds Cicero's description of such sayings as saltpits,—that you may extract salt out of them, and sprinkle it where you will. They are the guiding oracles which man has found out for himself in that great business of ours, of learning how to be, to do, to do without, and to depart. Their range extends from prudential kitchen maxims, such as Franklin set forth in the sayings of Poor Richard about thrift in time and money, up to such great and high moralities of life as are the prose maxims of Goethe,—just as Bacon's Essays extend from precepts as to building and planting, up to solemn reflections on truth, death, and the vicissitudes of things. They cover the whole field of man as he is, and life as it is, not of either as they ought to be; friendship, ambition, money, studies, business, public duty, in all their actual laws and conditions as they are, and not as the ideal moralist may wish that they were.

The substance of the wisdom of life must be commonplace, for the best of it is the result of the common experience of the world. Its most universal and important propositions must in a certain sense be truisms. The road has been so broadly trodden by the hosts who have travelled along it, that the main rules of the journey are clear enough, and we all know that the secret of breakdown and wreck is seldom so much an insufficient knowledge of the route as imperfect discipline of the will. The truism, however, and the commonplace may be stated in a form so

fresh, pungent, and free from triviality, as to have all the force of new discovery. Hence the need for a caution, that few maxims are to be taken without qualification. They seek sharpness of impression by excluding one side of the matter and exaggerating another, and most aphorisms are to be read as subject to all sorts of limits, conditions, and corrections.

It has been said that the order of our knowledge is this, that we know best, first, what we have divined by native instinct; second, what we have learned by experience of men and things; third, what we have learned not in books, but by books—that is, by the reflections that they suggest; fourth, last and lowest, what we have learned in books or with masters. The virtue of an aphorism comes under the third of these heads: it conveys a portion of a truth with such point as to set us thinking on what remains. Montaigne, who delighted in Plutarch, and kept him ever on his table, praises him in that besides his long discourses, "there are a thousand others, which he has only touched and glanced upon, where he only points with his finger to direct us which way we may go if we will, and contents himself sometimes with only giving one brisk hit in the nicest article of the question, from whence we are to grope out the rest." And this is what Plutarch himself is driving at, when he warns young men that it is well to go for a light to another man's fire, but by no means to tarry by it, instead of kindling a torch of their own.

1.2. Functions of Aphorisms in a Language

Grammarians draw a distinction between a maxim and an aphorism, and tell us that while an aphorism only states some broad truths of general bearing, a maxim, besides stating the truth, enjoins a rule of conduct as its consequence. For instance, to say that "There are some men with just imagination enough to spoil their judgment" is an aphorism. But there is action as well as thought in such sayings as this: "Tis a great sign of mediocrity to be always reserved in praise"; or in this of M. Aurelius, "When thou wishes to give thyself delight, think of the excellences of those who live with thee; for instance, of the energy of one, the modesty of another, the liberal kindness of a third." Again, according to this distinction of the word, we are to give the name of aphorism to Pascal's saying that "Most of the mischief in the world would never happen, if men would only be content to sit still in their parlours."^[1] But we are to. give the name of maxim to the great and admirable counsel of a philosopher of a very different school, that "If you would love mankind, you should not expect too much from them."

But the distinction is one without much difference; we need not labour it nor pay it further attention. Aphorism or maxim, let us remember that this wisdom of life is the true salt of literature; that those books, at least in prose, are most nourishing which are most richly stored with it; and that it is one of the great objects, apart from the mere acquisition of knowledge, which men ought to seek in the reading of books.

A great living painter has said, that the longer he works, the more does he realise how very little anybody except the trained artist actually perceives in the natural objects constantly before him; how blind men are to impressions of colour and light and form, which would be full of interest and delight, if people only knew how to see them. Are not most of us just as blind to the thousand lights and shades in the men and women around us? We live in the world as we live among fellow-inmates in a hotel, or fellow-revellers at a masquerade. Yet this, to bring knowledge of ourselves and others "home to our business and our bosoms," is one of the most important parts of culture.

Some prejudice is attached in generous minds to this wisdom of the world as being egotistical, poor, and unimaginative, of the earth earthy. Since the great literary reaction at the end of the last century, men have been apt to pitch criticism of life in the high poetic key. They have felt with Wordsworth:—

"The human nature with which I felt that I belonged and reverenced with love, Was not a persistent presence, but a spirit diffused through time and space, with aid derived of evidence from monuments, erect, prostrate, or leaning towards their common rest on earth, the widely-scattered wreck sublime of vanished nations."

Then again, there is another cause for the passing eclipse of interest in wisdom of the world. Extraordinary advances have been made in ordered knowledge of the various stages of the long pre-historic dawn of human civilisation. The man of the flint implement and the fire-drill, who could only count up to five, and who was content to live in a hut like a bee-hive, has drawn interest away from the man of the market and the parlour. The literary passion for primitive times and the raw material of man has thrust polished man, the manufactured article, into a secondary place. All this is in the order of things. It is fitting that we should pierce into the origins of human nature. It is right, too, that the great poets, the ideal interpreters of life, should be dearer to us than those who stop short with mere deciphering of what is real and actual. The poet has his own sphere of the beautiful and the sublime. But it is no less true that the enduring weight of historian, moralist, political orator, or preacher, depends on the amount of the wisdom of life that is hived in his pages. They may be admirable by virtue of other qualities, by learning, by grasp, by majesty of flight; but it is his moral sentences on mankind or the State, that rank the prose writer among the sages. These show that he has an eye for the great truths of action, for the permanent bearings of conduct, and for things that are for the guidance of all generations. What is it that makes Plutarch's Lives "the pasture of great souls," as they were called by one who was herself a great soul? Because his aim was much less to tell a story than, as he says, "to decipher the man and his nature"; and in deciphering the man, to strike out many pregnant and fruitful thoughts on all men. Why was it worth while for Mr. Jowett, the other day, to give us a new translation of Thucydides' history of the Peloponnesian War? and why is it worth your while, at least to dip in a serious spirit into its pages? Partly, because the gravity and concision of Thucydides are of specially wholesome example in these days of over-coloured and over- voluminous narrative; partly, because he knows how to invest the wreck and overthrow of those small states with the pathos and dignity of mighty imperial fall; but most of all, for the sake of the wise sentences that are sown with apt but not unsparing hand through the progress of the story. Well might Gray ask his friend whether Thucydides' description of the final destruction of the Athenian host at Syracuse was not the finest thing he ever read in his life; and assuredly the man who can read that stern tale without admiration, pity, and awe, may be certain that he has no taste for noble composition, and no feeling for the deepest tragedy of mortal things. But it is the sagacious sentences in the speeches of Athenians, Corinthians, and Lacedæmonians that do most of all to give to the historian his perpetuity of interest to every reader with the rudiments of a political instinct, and make Thucydides as modern as if he had written yesterday.

Tacitus belongs to a different class among the great writers of the world. He had, beyond almost any author of the front rank that has ever lived, the art of condensing his thought and driving it home to the mind of the reader with a flash. Beyond almost anybody, he suffered from what a famous writer of aphorisms in our time has described as "the cursed ambition to put a whole book into a page, a whole page into a phrase, and the phrase into a word." But the moral thought itself in Tacitus mostly belongs less to the practical wisdom of life, than to sombre poetic indignation, like that of Dante, against the perversities of men and the blindness of fortune.

Horace's Epistles are a mine of genial, friendly, humane observation. Then there is none of the ancient moralists to whom the modern, from Montaigne, Charron, Ralegh, Bacon, downwards, owe more than to Seneca. Seneca has no spark of the kindly warmth of Horace; he has not the animation of Plutarch; he abounds too much in the artificial and extravagant paradoxes of the Stoics. But, for all that, he touches the great and eternal commonplaces of human occasion friendship, health, bereavement, riches, poverty, death—with a hand that places him high among the wise masters of life. All through the ages men, tossed in the beating waves of circumstance, have found more in the essays and letters of Seneca than in any other secular writer, words of good counsel and comfort. And let this fact not pass, without notice of the light that it sheds on the great fact of the unity of literature, and of the absurdity of setting a wide gulf between ancient or classical literature and modern, as if under all dialects the partakers in Græco-

Roman civilisation, whether in Athens, Rome, Paris, Weimar, Edinburgh, London, Dublin, were not the heirs of a great common stock of thought and speech.

I certainly do not mean anything so absurd as that the moralities, whether major or minor, whether affecting the foundation of conduct or the surface of manners, remain fixed. On the contrary, one of the most interesting things in literature is to mark the shifts and changes in men's standards. For instance, Boswell tells a curious story of the first occasion on which Johnson met Sir Joshua Reynolds. Two ladies of the company were regretting the death of a friend to whom they owed great obligations. Reynolds observed that they had at any rate the comfort of being relieved from a debt of gratitude. The ladies were naturally shocked at this singular alleviation of their grief, but Johnson defended it in his clear and forcible manner, and, says Boswell, "was much pleased with the mind, the fair view of human nature, that it exhibited, like some of the reflections of Rochefoucauld." On the strength of it he went home with Reynolds, supped with him, and was his friend for life. No moralist with a reputation to lose would like to back Reynolds's remark in the nineteenth century.

The generation in Great Britain has been singularly unfortunate in the literature of aphorism. One too famous volume of proverbial philosophy had immense vogue, but it is so vapid, so wordy, so futile, as to have a place among the books that dispense with parody. Then, rather earlier in the century, a clergyman, who ruined himself by gambling, ran away from his debts to America, and at last blew his brains out, felt peculiarly qualified to lecture mankind on moral prudence. He wrote a little book in 1820, called *Lacon; or Many Things in Few Words, addressed to those who think*. It is an awful example to anybody who is tempted to try. his hand at an aphorism. Thus, "Marriage is a feast where the grace is sometimes better than the dinner." I had made some other extracts from this unhappy sage, but you will thank me for having thrown them into the fire. Finally, a great authoress of our time was urged by a friend to fill up a gap in our literature by composing a volume of "Thoughts": the result was that most insufferable of all deadly-lively prosings in our sublunary world, *Theophrastus Such*. One living

writer of genius has given us a little sheaf of subtly-pointed maxims in the *Ordeal* of *Richard Feverel*, and perhaps he will one day divulge to the world the whole contents of Sir Austin Feverel's unpublished volume, *The Pilgrim's Scrip*.

Yet the wisdom of life has its full part in our literature. Keen insight into peculiarities of individual motive, and concentrated interest in the play of character, shine not merely in Shakespeare, whose mighty soul, as Hallam says, was saturated with moral observation, nor in the brilliant verse of Pope. For those who love meditative reading on the ways and destinies of men, we have Burton and Fuller and Sir Thomas Browne in one age, and Addison, Johnson, and the rest of the Essayists, in another. Sir Thomas Overbury's Characters, written in the Baconian age, are found delightful by some; but for my own poor part, though I have striven to follow the critic's golden rule, to have preferences but no exclusions, Overbury has for me no savour. In the great art of painting moral portraits, or character-writing, the characters in Clarendon, or in Burnet's History of His Own *Time*, are full of life, vigour, and coherency, and are intensely attractive to read. I cannot agree with those who put either Clarendon or Burnet on a level with the characters in St. Simon or the Cardinal de Retz: there is a subtlety of analysis, a searching penetration, a breadth of moral comprehension, in the Frenchmen. A homelier hand does well enough for homelier men. Nevertheless, such characters as those of Falkland, or Chillingworth, by Clarendon, or Burnet's very different Lauderdale, are worth a thousand battle-pieces, cabinet plots, or parliamentary combinations, of which we never can be sure that the narrator either knew or has told the whole story. It is true that these characters have not the strange quality which some one imputed to the writing of Tacitus, that it seems to put the reader himself and the secrets of his own heart into the confessional. It is in the novel that, in this country, the faculty of observing social man and his peculiarities has found its most popular instrument. The great novel, not of romance or adventure, but of character and manners, from the mighty Fielding, down, at a long interval, to Thackeray, covers the field that in France is held, and successfully held, against all comers, by her maxim writers, like La Rochefoucauld, and her character writers,

like La Bruyère. But the literature of aphorism contains one English name of magnificent and immortal lustre—the name of Francis Bacon. Bacon's essays are the unique masterpiece in our literature of this oracular wisdom of life, applied to the scattered occasions of men's existence. The Essays are known to all the world; but there is another and perhaps a weightier performance of Bacon's which is less known, or not known at all, except to students here and there. I mean the second chapter of the 8th book of his famous treatise, *De Augmentis*. It has been translated into pithy English, and you will find it in the fifth volume of the great edition of Bacon, by Spedding and Ellis, which is doubtless in your library.

In this chapter, among other things, he composes comments on between thirty and forty of what he calls the Aphorisms or Proverbs of Solomon, which he truly describes as containing, besides those of a theological character, "not a few excellent civil precepts and cautions, springing from the inmost recesses of wisdom, and extending to much variety of occasions." I know not where else to find more of the salt of common sense in an uncommon degree than in Bacon's terse comments on the Wise King's terse sentences, and in the keen, sagacious, shrewd wisdom of the world, lighted up by such brilliance of wit and affluence of illustration, in the pages that come after them.

This sort of wisdom was in the taste of the time; witness Ralegh's *Instructions to his Son*, and that curious collection "of political and polemical aphorisms grounded on authority and experience," which he called by the name of the *Cabinet Council*. Harrington's *Political Aphorisms*, which came a generation later, are not moral sentences; they are a string of propositions in political theory, breathing a noble spirit of liberty, though too abstract for practical guidance through the troubles of the day. But Bacon's admonitions have a depth and copiousness that are all his own. He says that the knowledge of advancement in life, though abundantly practised, had not been sufficiently handled in books, and so he here lays down the precepts for what he calls the *Architecture of Fortune*. They constitute the description of a man who is politic for his own fortune, and show how he may best shape a character that will attain the ends of fortune.

First, A man should accustom his mind to judge of the proportion and value of all things as they conduce to his fortune and ends.

Second, Not to undertake things beyond his strength, nor to row against the stream.

Third, Not to wait for occasions always, but sometimes to challenge and induce them, according to that saying of Demosthenes: "In the same manner as it is a received principle that the general should lead the army, so should wise men lead affairs," causing things to be done which they think good, and not themselves waiting upon events.

Fourth, Not to take up anything which of necessity forestalls a great quantity of time, but to have this sound ever ringing in our ears: "Time is flying—time that can never be retrieved."

Fifth, Not to engage one's self too peremptorily in anything, but ever to have either a window open to fly out at, or a secret way to retire by.

Sixth, To follow that ancient precept, not construed to any point of perfidiousness, but only to caution and moderation, that we are to treat our friend as if he might one day be a foe, and our foe as if he should one day be friend.

All these Bacon called the good arts, as distinguished from the evil arts which had been described years before by Machiavelli in his famous book *The Prince*, and also in his *Discourses*. Bacon called Machiavelli's sayings depraved and pernicious, and a corrupt wisdom, as indeed they are. He was conscious that his own maxims, too, stood in some need of elevation and of correction, for he winds up with wise warnings against being carried away by a whirlwind or tempest of ambition; by the general reminder that all things are vanity and vexation of spirit, and the particular reminder that, "Being without well-being is a curse, and the greater being, the greater curse," and that "all virtue is most rewarded, and all wickedness most punished in itself"; by the question whether this incessant, restless, and, as it were, Sabbathless pursuit of fortune, leaves time for holier duties, and what advantage it is to have a face erected towards heaven, with a spirit perpetually grovelling upon earth, eating dust like a serpent; and finally, he says

that it will not be amiss for men in this eager and excited chase of fortune, to cool themselves a little with that conceit of Charles V. in his instructions to his son, that "Fortune hath somewhat of the nature of a woman, who, if she be too closely wooed, is commonly the further off."

There is Baconian humour as well as a curious shrewdness in such an admonition as that which I will here transcribe, and there are many like it:—

"It is therefore no unimportant attribute of prudence in a man to be able to set forth to advantage before others, with grace and skill, his virtues, fortunes, and merits (which may be done without arrogance or breeding disgust); and again, to cover artificially his weaknesses, defects, misfortunes, and disgraces; dwelling upon the former and turning them to the light, sliding from the latter or explaining them away by apt interpretations and the like. Tacitus says of Mucianus, the wisest and most active politician of his time, 'That he had a certain art of setting forth to advantage everything he said or did.' And it requires indeed some art, lest it become wearisome and contemptible; but yet it is true that ostentation, though carried to the first degree of vanity, is rather a vice in morals than in policy. For as it is said of calumny, 'Calumniate boldly, for some of it will stick,' so it may be said of ostentation (except it be in a ridiculous degree of deformity), 'Boldly sound your own praises, and some of them will stick.' It will stick with the more ignorant and the populace, though men of wisdom may smile at it; and the reputation won with many will amply countervail the disdain of a few....And surely no small number of those who are of a solid nature, and who, from the want of this ventosity, cannot spread all sail in pursuit of their own honour, suffer some prejudice and lose dignity by their moderation."

Nobody need go to such writings as these for moral dignity or moral energy. They have no place in that nobler literature, from Epictetus and Marcus Aurelius downwards, which lights up the young soul with generous aims, and fires it with the love of all excellence. Yet the most heroic cannot do without a dose of circumspection. The counsels of old Polonius to Laertes are less sublime than Hamlet's soliloquy, but they have their place. Bacon's chapters are a manual of

circumspection, whether we choose to give to circumspection a high or a low rank in the list of virtues. Bacon knew of the famous city which had three gates, and on the first the horseman read inscribed, "Be bold;" and on the second gate yet again, "Be bold, and evermore be bold;" and on the third it was written, "Be not too bold."

This cautious tone had been brought about by the circumstances of the time. Government was strict; dissent from current opinions was dangerous; there was no indifference and hardly any tolerance; authority was suspicious and it was vindictive. When the great genius of Burke rose like a new sun into the sky, the times were happier, and nowhere in our literature does a noble prudence wear statelier robes than in the majestic compositions of Burke.

Those who are curious to follow the literature of aphorism into Germany, will, with the mighty exceptions of Goethe and Schiller, find but a parched and scanty harvest. They too often justify the unfriendly definition of an aphorism as a form of speech that wraps up something quite plain in words that turn it into something very obscure. As old Fuller says, the writers have a hair hanging to the nib of their pen. Their shortness does not prevent them from being tiresome. They recall the French wit to whom a friend showed a distich: "Excellent," he said; "but isn't it rather spun out?"

Lichtenberg, a professor of physics, who was also a considerable hand at satire a hundred years ago, composed a collection of sayings, not without some wheat amid much chaff. A later German writer, of whom I will speak in a moment or two, Schopenhauer, has some excellent remarks on Self-reflection, and on the difference between those who think for themselves and those who think for other people; between genuine Philosophers, who look at things first hand for their own sake, and Sophists, who look at words and books for the sake of making an appearance before the world, and seek their happiness in what they hope to get from others: he takes Herder for an example of the Sophist, and Lichtenberg for the true Philosopher. It is true that we hear the voice of the Self-thinker, and not the mere Book-philosopher, if we may use for once those uncouth compounds, in such sayings as these:—

"People who never have any time are the people who do least."

"The utmost that a weak head can get out of experience, is an extra readiness to find out the weaknesses of other people."

"Over-anxiously to feel and think what one could have done, is the very worst thing one can do."

"He who has less than he desires, should know that he has more than he deserves."

"Enthusiasts without capacity are the really dangerous people."

This last, by the way, recalls a saying of the great French reactionary, De Bonald, which is never quite out of date: "Follies committed by the sensible, extravagances uttered by the clever, crimes perpetrated by the good,—there is what makes revolutions."

Radowitz was a Prussian soldier and statesman who died rather more than half a century ago, and left among many other things two or three volumes of short fragmentary pieces on politics, religion, literature, and art. They are intelligent and elevated, but contain hardly anything to our point to-night, unless it be this, that what is called Stupidity springs not at all from mere want of Understanding, but from the fact that the free use of a man's understanding is hindered by some definite vice: Frivolity, Envy, Dissipation, Covetousness, all these darling vices of fallen man,—these are at the bottom of what we name Stupidity. This is true enough, but it is not so much to the point as the saying of a highly judicious aphorist of my own acquaintance, that "Excessive anger against human stupidity, is itself one of the most provoking of all forms of that stupidity."

Another author of aphorisms of the Goethe period was Klinger, a playwriter, who led a curious and varied life in camps and cities, who began with a vehement enthusiasm for the sentimentalism of Rousseau, and ended, as such men often end, with a hard and stubborn cynicism. He wrote *Thoughts on different Subjects of the World and Literature*, which are intelligent and masculine, if they are not

particularly pungent in expression. One of them runs—"He who will write interestingly must be able to keep heart and reason in close and friendliest connection. The heart must warm the reason, and reason must in turn blow on the embers if they are to burst into flame." This illustrates what an aphorism should not be; contrast its clumsiness with the brevity of the famous and admirable French saying of Vauvenargues, that "great thoughts come from the heart."

Schopenhauer gave to one of his minor works the name of 'Aphorismen zu Lebens-Weisheit, Aphorisms for the Wisdom of Life, and he put to it by way of motto, Chamfort's saying, "Happiness is no easy matter; 'tis very hard to find it within ourselves, and impossible to find it anywhere else." Schopenhauer was so well read in European literature, he had such natural alertness of mind, and his style is so pointed, direct, and wide-awake, that these detached discussions are interesting and most readable; but for the most part discussions they are, and not aphorisms. Thus, in the saying that "The perfect man of the world should be he who never sticks fast in indecision, nor ever falls into overhaste," the force of it lies in what goes before and what follows after. The whole collection, winding up with the chapter of Counsels and Maxims, is in the main an unsystematic enforcement of those peculiar views of human happiness and its narrow limits which proved to be the most important part of Schopenhauer's system. "The sovereign rule in the wisdom of life," he said, "I see in Aristotle's proposition (Eth. Nic. vii. 12), "ὁ φρόνιμος τὸ ἄλυπον διώνκει οὐ τό ἥδυ: Not pleasure but freedom from pain is what the sensible man goes after." The second volume, of Detached though systematically Ordered Thoughts on Various Circumstances, is miscellaneous in its range of topics, and is full of suggestion; but the thoughts are mainly philosophical and literary, and do not come very close to practical wisdom. In truth, so negative a view of happiness, such pale hopes and middling expectations, could not guide a man far on the path of active prudence, where we take for granted that the goal is really something substantial, serious, solid, and positive.^[2]

Nobody cared less for the wisdom that is drawn from books, or has said such hard things of mere reading. In the short piece to which I have already referred (p. 30), he works out the difference between the Scholar who has read in books, and the Thinkers, the Geniuses, the Lights of the World, and Furtherers of the human race, who have read directly from the world's own pages. Reading, he says, is only a *succedaneum* for one's own thinking. Reading is thinking with a strange head instead of one's own. People who get their wisdom out of books are like those who have got their knowledge of a country from the descriptions of travellers. Truth that has been picked up from books only sticks to us like an artificial limb, or a false tooth, or a rhinoplastic nose; the truth we have acquired by our own thinking is like the natural member. At least, as Goethe puts it in his verse,

What from thy fathers thou dost inherit, be sure thou earn it, that so it may be thine.

It is only Goethe and Schiller, and especially Goethe, "the strong, muchtoiling sage, with spirit free from mists, and sane and clear," who combine the higher and the lower wisdom, and have skill to put moral truths into forms of words that fix themselves with stings in the reader's mind. All Goethe's work, whether poetry or prose, his plays, his novels, his letters, his conversations, are richly bestrewn with the luminous sentences of a keen-eyed, steadfast, patient, indefatigable watcher of human life. He deals gravely and sincerely with men. He has none of that shallow irony by which small men who have got wrong with the world, seek a shabby revenge. He tells us the whole truth. He is not of those second-rate sages who keep their own secrets, externally complying with all the conventions of speech and demeanour, while privately nourishing unbridled freedom of opinion in the inner sanctuary of the mind. He handles soberly, faithfully, laboriously, cheerfully, every motive and all conduct. He marks himself the friend, the well-wisher, and the helper. I will not begin to quote from Goethe, for I should never end. The volume of Sprüche, or aphorisms in rhyme and prose in his collected works, is accessible to everybody, but some of his wisest and finest

are to be found in the plays, like the well-known one in his *Tasso*, "In stillness Talent forms itself, but Character in the great current of the world."

But here is a concentrated admonition from the volume that I have named, that will do as well as any other for an example of his temper:

"Wouldst thou fashion for thyself a seemly life?— Then fret not over what is past and gone; And spite of all thou mayst have lost behind, Yet act as if thy life were just begun: What each day wills, enough for thee to know. What each day wills, the day itself will tell; Do thine own task, and be therewith content; What others do, that shalt thou fairly judge; Be sure that thou no brother-mortal hate, Then all besides leave to the Master Power."

If any of you should be bitten with an unhappy passion for the composition of aphorisms, let me warn such an one that the power of observing life is rare, the power of drawing new lessons from it is rarer still, and the power of condensing the lesson in a pointed sentence is rarest of all. Beware of cultivating this delicate art. The effort is only too likely to add one more to that perverse class described by Gibbon, who strangle a thought in the hope of strengthening it, and applaud their own skill, when they have shown in a few absurd words the fourth part of an idea. Let me warmly urge anybody with so mistaken an ambition, instead of painfully distilling poor platitudes of his own, to translate the shrewd saws of the wisebrowed Goethe.

Some have found light in the sayings of Balthasar Gracian, a Spaniard, who flourished at the end of the seventeenth century, whose maxims were translated into English at the very beginning of the eighteenth, and who was introduced to the modern public in an excellent article by Sir M. E. Grant Duff a few years ago. The English title is attractive,—*The Art of Prudence, or a Companion for a Man of Sense*. I do not myself find Gracian much of a companion, though some of his aphorisms give a neat turn to a commonplace. Thus:—

"The pillow is a dumb sibyl. To sleep upon a thing that is to be done, is better than to be wakened up by one already done."

"To equal a predecessor one must have twice his worth."

"What is easy ought to be entered upon as though it were difficult, and what is difficult as though it were easy."

"Those things are generally best remembered which ought most to be forgot. Not seldom the surest remedy of the evil consists in forgetting it"

It is France that excels in the form no less than in the matter of aphorism, and for the good reason that in France the arts of polished society were relatively at an early date the objects of a serious and deliberate cultivation, which was and perhaps is unknown in the rest of Europe. Conversation became a fine art. "I hate war," said one; "it spoils conversation." The leisured classes found their keenest relish in delicate irony, in piquancy, in contained vivacity, in the study of niceties of observation and finish of phrase. You have a picture of it in such a play as Moliére's *Misanthropist*, where we see a section of the polished life of the time—men and women making and receiving compliments, discoursing on affairs with easy lightness, flitting backwards and forwards with a thousand petty hurries, and among them one singular figure, hoarse, rough, sombre, moving with a chilling reality in the midst of frolicking shadows. But the shadows were all in all to one another. Not a point of conduct, not a subtlety of social motive, escaped detection and remark.

Dugald Stewart has pointed to the richness of the French tongue in appropriate and discriminating expressions for varieties of intellectual turn and shade. How many of us, who claim to a reasonable knowledge of French, will undertake easily to find English equivalents for such distinctions as are expressed in the following phrases—Esprit juste, esprit étendu, esprit fin, esprit délié, esprit de lumière. These numerous distinctions are the evidence, as Stewart says, of the attention paid by the cultivated classes to delicate shades of mind and feeling. Compare with them the colloquial use of our overworked word "clever." Society and conversation have never been among us the school of reflection, the spring of literary inspiration, that they have been in France. The English rule has rather been like that of the ancient Persians, that the great thing is to learn to ride, to shoot with

the bow, and to speak the truth. There is much in it. But it has been more favourable to strength than to either subtlety or finish.

One of the most commonly known of all books of maxims, after the Proverbs of Solomon, is the Moral Reflections of La Rochefoucauld. The author lived at court, himself practised all the virtues which he seemed to disparage, and took so much trouble to make sure of the right expression that many of these short sentences were more than thirty times revised. They were given to the world in the last half of the seventeenth century in a little volume which Frenchmen used to know by heart, which gave a new turn to the literary taste of the nation, and which has been translated into every civilised tongue. It paints men as they would be if selflove were the one great mainspring of human action, and it makes magnanimity itself no better than self-interest in disguise.

"Interest," he says, "speaks all sorts of tongues and plays all sorts of parts, even the part of the disinterested."

"Gratitude is with most people only a strong desire for greater benefits to come."

"Love of justice is with most of us nothing but the fear of suffering injustice."

"Friendship is only a reciprocal conciliation of interests, a mutual exchange of good offices; it is a species of commerce out of which self-love always intends to make something."

"We have all strength enough to endure the troubles of other people."

"Our repentance is not so much regret for the ill we have done, as fear of the ill that may come to us in consequence."

And everybody here knows the saying that "In the adversity of our best friends we often find something that is not exactly displeasing."

We cannot wonder that in spite of their piquancy of form, such sentences as these have aroused in many minds an invincible repugnance for what would be so tremendous a calumny on human nature, if the book were meant to be a picture of human nature as a whole. I count Rochefoucauld's Maxims, says one critic, "a bad book. As I am reading it, I feel discomfort; I have a sense of suffering which I cannot define. Such thoughts tarnish the brightness of the soul; they degrade the heart."

Yet as a faithful presentation of human selfishness, and of you and me in so far as we happen to be mainly selfish, the odious mirror has its uses by showing us what manner of man we are or may become. Let us not forget either that not quite all is selfishness in La Rochefoucauld. Everybody knows his saying that hypocrisy is the homage that vice pays to virtue. There is a subtle truth in this, that to be in too great a hurry to discharge an obligation is itself a kind of ingratitude. Nor is there any harm in the reflection that no fool is so troublesome as the clever fool; or in this, that only great men have any business with great defects; or, finally, in this, that we are never either so happy or so unhappy as we imagine.

1.3. Cognitive Aspect in Exploration of English Aphorisms

No more important name is associated with the literature of aphorism than that of Pascal; but the Thoughts of Pascal concern the deeper things of speculative philosophy and religion, rather than the wisdom of daily life, and, besides, though aphoristic in form, they are in substance systematic. "I blame equally," he said, "those who take sides for praising man, those who are for blaming him, and those who amuse themselves with him: the only wise part is search for truth—search with many sighs." On man, as he exists in society, he said little; and what he said does not make us hopeful. He saw the darker side. "If everybody knew what one says of the other, there would not be four friends left in the world." "Would you have men think well of you, then do not speak well of yourself." And so forth. If you wish to know Pascal's theory you may find it set out in brilliant verse in the opening lines of the second book of Pope's Essay on Man. "What a chimera is Man," said Pascal. "What a confused chaos! What a subject of contradiction! A professed judge of all things, and yet a feeble worm of the earth; the great depository and guardian of truth, and yet a mere huddle of uncertainty; the glory and the scandal of the universe." Shakespeare was wiser and deeper when, under

this quintessence of dust, he discerned what a piece of work is man, how noble in reason, how infinite in faculty, in form and moving how express and admirable. This serene and radiant faith is the secret, added to matchless gifts of imagination and music, why Shakespeare is the greatest of men.

There is a smart, spurious wisdom of the world which has the bitterness not of the salutary tonic but of mortal poison; and of this kind the master is Chamfort, who lived through the French Revolution, and whose little volume of thoughts is often extremely witty, always pointed, but not seldom cynical and false. "If you live among men," he said, "the heart must either break or turn to brass." "The public, the public," he cried; "how many fools does it take to make a public!" "What is celebrity? The advantage of being known to people who don't know you."

All literatures might be ransacked in vain for a more repulsive saying than this, that "A man must swallow a toad every morning if he wishes to be quite sure of finding nothing more disgusting still for the rest of the day." We cannot be surprised to hear of the lady who said that a conversation with Chamfort in the morning made her melancholy until bedtime. Yet Chamfort is the author of the not unwholesome saying that, "The most wasted of all days is that on which one has not laughed." One of his maxims lets us into the secret of his misanthropy. "Whoever," he said, "is not a misanthropist at forty, can never have loved mankind." It is easy to know what this means. Of course if a man is so superfine that he will not love mankind any longer than he can believe them to be demigods and angels, it is true that at forty he may have discovered that they are neither. Beginning by looking for men to be more perfect than they can be, he ends by thinking them worse than they are, and then he secretly plumes himself on his superior cleverness in having found humanity out. For the deadliest of all wet blankets give me a middle-aged man who has been most of a visionary in his youth.

To correct all this, let us recall the saying that I have already quoted, which made so deep an impression on Jeremy Bentham: "In order to love mankind we must not expect too much from them." And let us remember that Archbishop Fénelon, one of the most saintly men that ever lived, and whose very countenance bore such a mark of goodness that when he was in a room men found they could not desist from looking at him, wrote to a friend the year before he died, "I ask little from most men; I try to render them much, and to expect nothing in return, and I get very well out of the bargain."

Chamfort I will leave, with his sensible distinction between Pride and Vanity. "A man," he says, "has advanced far in the study of morals who has mastered the difference between pride and vanity. The first is lofty, calm, immovable; the second is uncertain, capricious, unquiet. The one adds to a man s stature; the other only puffs him out. The one is the source of a thousand virtues; the other is that of nearly all vices and all perversities. There is a kind of pride in which are included all the commandments of God; and a kind of vanity which contains the seven mortal sins."

I will say little of La Bruyère, by far the greatest, broadest, strongest, of French character-writers, because his is not one of the houses of which you can judge by a brick or two taken at random. For those in whom the excitements of modern literature have not burnt up the faculty of sober meditation on social man, La Bruyère must always be one of the foremost names. Macaulay somewhere calls him thin. But Macaulay has less ethical depth, and less perception of ethical depth, than any writer that ever lived with equally brilliant gifts in other ways; and *thin* is the very last word that describes this admirable master. If one seeks to measure how far removed the great classic moralists are from thinness, let him turn from La Bruyère to the inane subtleties and meaningless conundrums, not worth answering, that do duty for analysis of character in some modern American literature. We feel that La Bruyère, though retiring, studious, meditative, and self-contained, has complied with the essential condition of looking at life and men themselves, and with his own eyes. His aphoristic sayings are the least important part of him, but here are one or two examples:—

"Eminent posts make great men greater, and little men less."

"There is in some men a certain mediocrity of mind that helps to make them wise."

"The flatterer has not a sufficiently good opinion either of himself or of others."

"People from the provinces and fools are always ready to take offence, and to suppose that you are laughing at them: we should never risk a pleasantry, except with well-bred people, and people with brains."

"All confidence is dangerous, unless it is complete: there are few circumstances in which it is not best either to hide all or to tell all."

"When the people is in a state of agitation, we do not see how quiet is to return; and when it is tranquil, we do not see how the quiet is to be disturbed."

"Men count for almost nothing the virtues of the heart, and idolise gifts of body or intellect The man who quite coolly, and with no idea that he is offending modesty, says that he is kind-hearted, constant, faithful, sincere, fair, grateful, would not dare to say that he is quick and clever, that he has fine teeth and a delicate skin."

I will say nothing of Rivarol, a caustic wit of the revolutionary time, nor of Joubert, a writer of sayings of this century, of whom Mr. Matthew Arnold has said all that needs saying. He is delicate, refined, acute, but his thoughts were fostered in the hothouse of a coterie, and have none of the salt and sapid flavour that comes to more masculine spirits from active contact with the world.

I should prefer to close this survey in the sunnier moral climate of Vauvenargues. His own life was a pathetic failure in all the aims of outer circumstance. The chances of fortune and of health persistently baulked him, but from each stroke he rose up again, with undimmed serenity and undaunted spirit. As blow fell upon blow, the sufferer held firmly to his incessant lesson, Be brave, persevere in the fight, struggle on, do not let go, think magnanimously of man and life, for man is good and life is affluent and fruitful. He died 140 years ago, leaving a little body of maxims behind him which, for tenderness, equanimity, cheerfulness, grace, sobriety, and hope, are not surpassed in prose literature. "One of the noblest qualities in our nature," he said, "is that we are able so easily to dispense with greater perfection."

"Magnanimity owes no account to prudence of its motives."

"To do great things a man must live as though he had never to die."

"The first days of spring have less grace than the growing virtue of a young man."

"You must rouse in men a consciousness of their own prudence and strength if you would raise their character."

Just as Tocqueville said: "He who despises mankind will never get the best out of either others or himself."^[3]

The best known of Vauvenargues' sayings, as it is the deepest and the broadest, is the far-reaching sentence already quoted, that "Great thoughts come from the heart." And this is the truth that shines out as we watch the voyagings of humanity from the "wide, grey, lampless depths" of time. Those have been greatest in thought who have been best endowed with faith, hope, sympathy, and the spirit of effort. And next to them come the great stern, mournful men, like Tacitus, Dante, Pascal, who, standing as far aloof from the soft poetic dejection of some of the moods of Shelley or Keats, as from the savage fury of Swift, watch with a prophet's indignation the heedless waste of faculty and opportunity, the triumph of paltry motive and paltry aim, as if we were the flies of a summer noon, which do more than any active malignity to distort the great lines, and to weaken or to frustrate the strong and healthy parts, of human nature. For practical purposes all these complaints of man are of as little avail as Johnson found the complaint that of the globe so large a space should be occupied by the uninhabitable ocean, encumbered by naked mountains, lost under barren sands, scorched by perpetual heat or petrified by perpetual frost, and so small a space be left for the production of fruits, the pasture of cattle, and the accommodation of men.

When we have deducted, said Johnson, all the time that is absorbed in sleep, or appropriated to the other demands of nature, or the inevitable requirements of social intercourse, all that is torn from us by violence of disease, or imperceptibly stolen from us by languor, we may realise of how small a portion of our time we are truly masters. And the same consideration of the ceaseless and natural præoccupations of men in the daily struggle, will reconcile the wise man to all the disappointments, delays, shortcomings of the world, without shaking the firmness of his own faith, or the intrepidity of his own purpose.

1. La Bruyère also says:—"All mischief comes from our not being able to be alone; hence play, luxury, dissipation, wine, ignorance, calumny, envy, forgetfulness of one's self and of God."

2. Burke says on the point raised above: "I am satisfied that ideas of pain are much more powerful than those which enter on the part of pleasure. Without all doubt, the torments which we may be made to suffer are much greater in their effect on the body and mind than any pleasures which the most learned voluptuary could suggest. Nay, I am in great doubt whether any man could be found, who would earn a life of the most perfect satisfaction at the price of ending it in the torments which justice inflicted in a few hours on the late unfortunate regicide in France."—(*Sublime and Beautiful*, sec. vii.) The reference is, of course, to Damiens.

3. The reader who cares to know more about Vauvenargues will find a chapter on him in the present writer's *Miscellanies* vol II.

The presentation concerns with the study of cognitive-communicative potential of English aphorisms. An analysis of value-labelled utterances (e.g. aphorisms) is an important element of the conceptual analysis as they convey common sense through the words of their author. So an aphorism is an intersection area of individual and common to all mankind knowledge about the world.

From the standpoint of functional approach a concept is regarded as a dynamic substance: both a process and a result of giving a meaning to a language sign in the situation of communication. Discourse is the only medium where concept can exist.

A certain type of discourse forms a specific conceptual system which represents an individual mental-informative portrait of the discourse. Being a cross-discursive phenomenon, aphorism has a wide conceptual sphere with a special structural organization possessing specific features when used in different

discourses. A cynic is a man who knows the price of everything but the value of nothing. Oscar Wilde. A dwarf standing on the shoulders of a giant may see farther than a giant himself.

Samuel Taylor Coleridge. – Fiction. Buddhism is not a creed, it is a doubt. Gilbert K. Chesterton – religious discourse. Democracy means government by the uneducated, while aristocracy means government by the badly educated. Gilbert K. Chesterton – political discourse. And the first known aphorism by Hippocrates Life is short, Art long is from medical discourse by origin. A concept or its field displays a certain cognitive-semantic selectivity in its actualization in various discursive formations.

The conceptual system of aphorism is believed to comprise mainly the fields of the concepts: life / death, happiness / misery, wisdom, virtue / vice, love / hate, man / woman, war / peace, success / failure, wealth / poverty, law, politics, health / disease, science / faith.

It is worth saying that according to the type of discourse the nucleus of conceptual system is organized by the fields of different concepts and in the case than a concept is used in different discourses it reveals a specific meaning in each of them.

CHAPTER TWO. Syntactic and Semantic Peculiarities of Aphorisms in English.

These days, there are more than 5,000 living languages in the world, of which English is by far the most widely used. Approximately, 350 million people speak English as their first language. About the same number use it as a second language. It is the English language that is used as the language of aviation, international sport and pop music. It is also the English language that is used as an official language in 44 countries, and as the language of business, commerce and technology in many others. English is now an effective medium of international communication.

In Uzbekistan, English has long been regarded as a tool of international communication, and together with its rising importance, the need of learning English is becoming more and more urgent. It cannot be denied that all foreign learners in general and Uzbek learners in particular desire to master English as the native speakers; however, they usually face a lot of difficulties that prevent them from gaining successful conversations. One of the reasons for these problems lies in the way people perceive and use aphorisms. Aphorisms are considered to be special factors of a language's vocabulary system because they reflect cultural special characteristics of each nation, including material and spiritual values. A lot of researchers, therefore, have long shown their interests in aphorisms. Aphorisms are used to express ideas in figurative styles. They bring the vividness and richness to the speaker's speeches; therefore, knowing how to use aphorisms effectively in the right situations becomes essential.

2.1. Overview of Aphorisms

It is really interesting to realize that there are a large number of aphorisms in both English and Uzbek expressing gain and loss in humans' life. Therefore, they have become a linguistic phenomenon that linguistic researchers cannot ignore.

Furthermore, in order to achieve the effective intercultural communicative purpose in the globalization age, we ourselves should be equipped with background knowledge of culture which is known as "the depository of knowledge, experience, beliefs, values, attitudes, meanings, social hierarchies, religion, notions of time, roles, spatial relationships, concepts of the universe and material objects and possessions acquired by a group of people in the course of generations" [17, 8]. Obviously, studying aphorisms of a nation, especially aphorisms related to gain and loss is one of best ways to understand culture as well as people in that nation.

From the reasons mentioned above, the thesis "A Study of Linguistic Features of Aphorisms in English" is expected to be an interesting and helpful material for foreign language teachers and learners and for people who are interested in aphorisms in both English and Uzbek.

There have been a lot of researchers conducting investigations into aphorisms in both English and Uzbek. For English aphorisms, the large number of scholars including Taylor, Ridout and Whiting, Norrick, Collis, Galperin and so on has made great contribution to this field. However, based on different approaches and goals, their publications focus on one or another aspect of aphorisms. Generally, these linguists provide us with an overall picture of theoretical background of how to examine language in use.

In view of Uzbek aphorism studies, some elaborate works connected with aphorisms have contributed to the knowledge of the field and one of the wholehearted authors where the difference between idioms and aphorisms is mentioned based on two criteria: content and grammatical structures, the authors collected and compiled some common English aphorisms and the Uzbek equivalents, and these materials helped me a great deal in this study.

In addition, there have been so far some master theses in English on aphorisms carried out by many Uzbek people.

After examining the studies mentioned above, it could be seen that hardly a research into the linguistic features of aphorisms relating to gain and loss in English versus Uzbek has been so far carried out.

It is this very reason that inspires me to devote myself to this study.

a. The Notions of Aphorisms

One of the major concerns of paremiologists for centuries is how to have a comprehensive and accurate definition of aphorisms, simply because among the other verbal folklore genres (fairy tales, legends, jokes and riddles), aphorisms are the most concise but not the simplest form. They fulfill the human need to summarize experiences and observations into reservoir of knowledge that provide ready-made comments on personal relationship and social affairs. In English, there are many scholars' views about aphorisms: Taylor, Honeck, Mieder and so on. Mieder shows his attempt to define aphorisms, expanding Gallacher's opinion as follows: "Aphorisms are concise traditional statements of apparent truths with currency among the folk.

More elaborately stated, a aphorism is a short, generally known sentence of the folk which contains wisdom, truth, morals, and traditional views in a metaphorical, fixed and memorizable form and which is handed down from generation to generation." [10, 42]

In sum, these short and general definitions certainly do not pay proper attention to numerous fascinating aspects of aphorisms as formulaic and metaphorical texts and as regards their use, function, and meaning in varied contexts as well.

b. Typical Features of Aphorisms

* Formand Structure

Aphorisms are prefabricated units. They are usually short, pithy and lapidary. And for the sake of memorability, aphorisms tend to be alliterative. The structure of a aphorism is normally fixed and not easy to break. Another feature in the structure of aphorisms is the frequent use of many types of meaning transference such as metaphor and simile which shows the creativity of former generations as well as their original worldview.

* Content and Function

Regarding content, aphorisms usually bear advice and moral lessons which have been drawn from the real experience of life of many generations.

c. Comprehension and Interpretation of Aphorisms

Before applying aphorisms in practice, it is of first priority to ascertain what each aphorism means. If a person uses a aphorism in a particular text without realizing its meaning, the expression could be used incorrectly and might cause some misunderstandings.

In addition, aphorisms may contain more than one stylistic device and, in such a way, they become more impressive and effective, however, at the same time their meanings are harder to perceive. The same aphorism used in different texts or situations can have more or less varying meanings. Moreover, the inner form of aphorisms affected by the flow of time and historical development, which influenced the appearance of new interpretations and applications in situations differing from the traditionally intended ones.

d. Aphorisms Relating to Gain and Loss

Gain and Loss related aphorisms investigated in this thesis are aphorisms which meet the notion of aphorisms stated in section 2.2.1.1 and simultaneously contain words denoting Gain and Loss such as gain, loss, win, lose, come, go, throw, catch, nothing, everything, etc. in English.

Aphorisms and Other Language Units

a. Aphorisms and Idioms Table 2.1: Similarities and Differences between Aphorisms and Idioms

		APHORISMS	IDIOMS
SIMILARITIES	- Ready-made linguistic units		
	-Figurative meaning		
DIFFERENCES	Syntactic	- sentence	-phrase
	Semantic	- judgment	-notion
		- informative	-nominalization
		-didactic	- figurative

b. Aphorisms and Famous Sayings

Table 2.2: Similarities and Differences between Aphorisms and Sayings

		APHORISMS	SAYINGS
SIMILARITIES	-repeated sentences with rhythm		
	- independent units of communication		
DIFFERENCES	Syntactic	- fixed form	- modified form

Semantic	- popular statements by	- well-known or
	unknown authors	wise statements
	- informing or denoting a	by famous people
	judgment	- denoting advice
	-experiential didactic content	0
	or a rule of conduct	-observative
		statements without
		didactic force

c. Aphorisms and Clichés

Table 2.3: Similarities and Differences between Aphorisms and Clichés

		APHORISMS	CLICHÉS
SIMILARITIES	- easily remembered formulaic structures		
	- figurative form		
DIFFERENCES	Syntactic	- brief sentence	- idea or phrase
	Semantic	- judgment	- notion
		- informative	- naming
		- winning recognition	- losing vigor
		through frequent use	through the frequent
		- packing didactic	use
		lesson	- no didactic
			lesson

Types of Sentences in English in Terms of Structure

a. Clause Elements

There are five clause elements syntactically defined: subject (S), verb (V), object (O), complement(C) and adverbial (A).

b. Simple Sentences

TrầnHữuMạnh [37, p.389] stated that sentences could be analyzed in terms of S, V, O, C and A and the decisive factor on sentence types is the V.

 \cdot S + Vintransitive

- \cdot S + Vmonotransitive + O
- \cdot S + Vintransitive + C
- \cdot S + Vintensive + A
- \cdot S + Vditransitive + O + O
- \cdot S + V complex transitive + O+ C
- \cdot S + V complex transitive + O+ A

c. Compound Sentences (Coordination)

There are two kinds of coordination: syndetic coordination – when coordinators are present – and asyndetic coordination – when coordinators are absent.

d. Complex Sentences (Subordination)

* Adjective Clauses

* Norminal Clauses

* Adverbial clauses

e. Comparative Sentences

* Equational and Differentiating

* Enough and Too

* So... that and Such... that

f. Aphoristic Sentences

Aphoristic sentence is among other monor sentence types and can be found in many aphorisms.

Types of Sentences in English in Terms of Syntactic Classes

a. Statements

b. Questions

c. Commands

d. Exclamations

Types of Sentences in Uzbek in Terms of Structure

a. Sentence Elements

There are five clause elements syntactically defined: subject (S), verb (V),

object (O), complement(C) and adverbial (A).

b. Simple Sentences

TrầnHữu Mạnh [37, p.388-389] concludes that in Uzbek there are 7 patterns of simple sentences equivalent to those in English:

S + Vintransitive

S + Vmonotransitive + O

S + Vintransitive + C

S + Vintensive + A

S + V ditransitive + O + O

S + V complex transitive + O + C

S + V complex transitive + O + A

All of seven patterns above are with verbs. Besides, in Uzbek there are also patterns without verbs. The predicators of these patterns are noun phrases (NP) or adjective phrases (Adj.P).

c. Compound Sentences

- Syndetic coordination – compound sentence whose two clauses are connected by conjunctions.

- Asyndetic coordination – compound sentence whose two clauses are not connected by conjunctions.

d. Complex Sentences

- Complex sentence containing the structure S-P which is a phrasal element

- Complex sentence containing the structure S-P which is a sentential element.

- Complex sentence containing the structure S-P which is a subordinate clause

e. Comparative Sentences

There are two kinds of comparisons: equational and differentiating.

- Equational comparison uses bằng,ngang,như,...

- Differentiating comparisonuses hon, kém,...

2.2. Syntactic Features of English Aphorisms

In this chapter, we are primarily concerned with Research Methods, Sampling, Data Collection, Data Analysis, Instrumentation. The procedures of performing the research are also presented at the same time. The validity and reliability will be stated and justified at the end of this chapter.

a. Syntactic Features of English Aphorism in Terms of Structure

 Table 4.5: Sentence Types of English Aphorism

Sentence Types	Occurrence	Distribution rate
Simple Sentences	67	44.7%
Compound Sentences	11	7.3%
Complex Sentences	39	26%
Comparative Sentences	10	6.7%
Aphoristic Sentences	23	15.3%
Total	150	100%

Generally, Aphorism under study in both English and Uzbek are constructed in simple, compound, complex and comparative sentences.

Concerning complex sentences, both English and Uzbek Aphorism are found to have the second place of percentage.

In terms of comparative sentences, both English and Uzbek Aphorism are found to have lowest percentage.

Relating to the data of both English and Uzbek comparative sentences, differentiating comparison is used more commonly than equational comparison.

In reference to simple sentences, English simple Aphorism have higher percentage than Uzbek ones. In addition, the sentence structure of English simple Aphorism is of greater variety with 5 patterns (SV, SVA, SVC, SVO, SVOC) than Uzbek simple Aphorism with two patterns (SVC, SVO).

Concerning compound sentences, the number of compound Aphorism in English is far less than that of compound Aphorism in Uzbek. Moreover, English compound Aphorism in form of syndetic coordination are more aphorisms than in form of asyndetic coordination while only compound without coordinators are found in Uzbek samples with 98 sentences aphorisms at 100% and no Uzbek Aphorism are formed in compound sentences with coordinators.

Relating to the data of complex sentences, English Aphorism are more than Uzbek ones. In addition, English Aphorism are structured in all three kinds of clauses: adjective, nominal and adverbial clauses while Uzbek Aphorism are formed in two kinds: nominal clauses (S-P functioning as sentential elements) and adverbial clauses (S-P functioning as subordinate clauses).

As for comparative sentences, the number of comparative Aphorism in English is nearly two times as many as Uzbek ones. From the differences mentioned above, it is easy to recognize that the culture of each country has an effect on their languages.

Meanwhile Uzbek people would like to use coordinators to connect members of sentences, English people would like to express simply and shortly their thoughts and ideas.

a. Syntactic Features of English Aphorism in Terms of Syntactic Classes

Table 4.12: Distribution of Syntactic Classes in English Aphorism

Syntactic Classes	Occurrence	Distribution rate
Statements	131	87.3%
Commands	19	12.7%
Questions	0	0%
Exclamations	0	0%
Total	150	100%

c. Similarities and Differences between English and Uzbek Aphorism in Terms of Syntactic Classes

Both dominating with 131 and 150 aphorisms successively. This finding is in the same light as the assumption by Milner and Barley [13, p.32] who identify aphorisms with statements or by Abrahams [13, p.32] who requires aphorisms to be a full statement. Another finding in similarity is that exclamations and questions are existent neither in English Aphorism nor Uzbek ones.

One distinctive feature has been uncovered from the data interpretation above: English Aphorism in commands are found in the source with 19 aphorisms (12.7%) while no Uzbek Aphorism under study in commands form are found.

2.3. Semantic Features of Aphorisms

It can be clearly seen that both English and Uzbek own a large number of Aphorism in their national treasure of folklore. These aphorisms, in some way, not only provide us with a valuable bag of wisdom but also broaden our awareness of cultural value and life experience. Moreover, one of the most characteristic properties of Aphorism in the two languages is also marked by the use of many similar stylistic devices such as metaphor, antithesis, hyperbole and simile. Thanks to these powerful expressive means, we can create aphorisms with subtle nuances of meaning that no other means can attain. This also proves a fact that English as well as Uzbek like to use figurative image to make their speech more persuasive. With regard to semantic of Aphorism in English and Uzbek, one can easily realize the phenomenon of the twofold application of meaning in most aphorisms: the surface meaning of the aphorisms and their figurative meaning embodied through the stylistic markers, just mentioned above.

In addition, it must be noted that English and Uzbek people meet each other in thought in spite of the fact that they live far from each other. As a matter of fact, the formation as well as the way they generalize their idea in aphorisms are identical. Another identical feature between EAphorism and VAphorism is that they both share the same semantic fields such as labour and business, life experience, family relationship, social relationship, education, destiny, money, characters and some other fields.

Although both English and Uzbek people like to use stylistic devices in their aphorisms to make their utterance more condensed and colourful, the frequency of these expressive means does not always occur correspondence with each other and the case of metonymy is an instance. We can find some metonymic aphorisms in English. In contrast, there are no cases of metonymic aphorisms in Uzbek. This indicates that the difference is resulted from the habit of language use of each nation.

What is more, the differences between EAphorism and VAphorism are also revealed through the dissimilarities between cultural characteristics of the two nations. It is obvious that each country has its own civilization, national tradition, religious belief and life condition. These factors, to some extent, impose on their thought then produce different aphorisms as an inevitable consequence.

Additionally, the semantic field does not have the same numbers of Aphorism in English and in Uzbek. This is because different awareness of people in the two nations leads to the difference in describing objects or phenomenon in the objective world. That explains why the aphorisms of the lexical fields such as social relationship, labour and business and money are used more commonly in Uzbek than these in English.

Aphorisms are prefabricated units. They are usually short, pithy and lapidary. And for the sake of memorability, aphorisms tend to be alliterative. The structure of a aphorism is normally fixed and not easy to break. Another feature in the structure of aphorisms is the frequent use of many types of meaning transference such as metaphor and simile which shows the creativity of former generations as well as their original worldview.

Regarding content, aphorisms usually bear advice and moral lessons which have been drawn from the real experience of life of many generations.

Before applying aphorisms in practice, it is of first priority to ascertain what each aphorism means. If a person uses a aphorism in a particular text without realizing its meaning, the expression could be used incorrectly and might cause some misunderstandings.

In addition, aphorisms may contain more than one stylistic device and, in such a way, they become more impressive and effective, however, at the same time their meanings are harder to perceive. The same aphorism used in different texts or situations can have more or less varying meanings. Moreover, the inner form of aphorisms affected by the flow of time and historical development, which influenced the appearance of new interpretations and applications in situations differing from the traditionally intended ones.

Gain and Loss related aphorisms investigated in this thesis are aphorisms which meet the notion of aphorisms stated in section 2.2.1.1 and

simultaneously contain words denoting Gain and Loss such as gain, loss, win, lose, come, go, throw, catch, nothing, everything, etc. in English.

However, the aphorisms with four words in English Aphorism are less frequently used than the ones in Uzbek. Semantically, there are total of 9 groups semantic fields in both languages categorized. Through the process of investigation we have also discovered that most aphorisms contain two simultaneous meaning at the same time: literal meaning and figurative meaning, so we sometimes find it difficult to understand the aphorisms at the first sight. Basically, the figurative meaning or implied meaning of aphorisms is usually conveyed through the expensive means such as metaphor, metonymy, hyperbole, simile, or metaphor. More interestingly, some Uzbek aphorisms have no equivalence in English or vice versa because of the cultural differences from countries to countries.

One example of teaching Aphorism combining all above implications is as follows:

- Step 1: providing learners with kinds of sentences in English which are simple, compound, complex, comparative and aphoristic.

- Step 2: supplying two columns: column A consisting of the first part of aphorisms and column B consisting of the second part of aphorisms.

-Step 3: giving definitions or clues for each aphorism.

- Step 4: asking learners to match one part in column A with another in column B to make a complete aphorism which is correct grammatically and suitable with the definition given before.

From these exercises, learners will more easily remember aphorisms syntactically and semantically. Moreover, teachers can ask learners to find out Uzbek equivalent aphorisms so that they can have a deep insight of aphorisms relating to gain and loss in both languages.

CONCLUSION

As mentioned in the first chapter, this thesis is aimed to deal with the syntactic and semantic features of Aphorism in English and Uzbek. Syntactically, Aphorism in the two languages is formed either in terms of structures or in terms of syntactic classes. Sentential structures are also categorized in simple, compound and complex sentences. In terms of syntactic classes, Aphorisms are grouped in statements, questions, commands and exclamations. In the form of sentence, simple sentences tend to occupy the largest number in the total of Aphorism and these simple ones distribute in 5 different patterns while in Aphorism there are two kinds of pattern frequently used. The symmetric structures of aphorisms with four words in each half are used more popularly in English Aphorism than in Uzbek Aphorism.

This work is hoped to be useful to be for not only teachers but also for learners of the two languages.

From the results of the study, some implications for teaching are drawn out as follows:

- The syntactic features of Aphorism in both English and Uzbek are useful for teachers in teaching grammar, especially in teaching types of sentences. Thanks to the syntactic similarities between English and Uzbek, teachers can help learners easily remember the structures. On the other hand, teachers are supposed to point out the syntactic differences between the two languages so that learners can distinguish and avoid making mistakes.

- The results of semantic features of Aphorism in English and Uzbek also contribute much in foreign teaching. Teachers are provided with two approaches of teaching meaning of aphorisms. First of all, teachers can teach learners kinds of meanings of Aphorism, i.e. teachers teach them whether an aphorism has only literal meaning or only figurative meaning or both literal and figurative meaning, and then explain these kinds of meanings one by one. For the second approach, teachers can have educational lessons based

on categories of Aphorism in positive, negative, orpositive-negative semantic types.

- Last but not least, based on the findings of semantic-syntactic characteristics of English and Uzbek Aphorism, teachers can help learners to find out Uzbek equivalent Aphorism for English ones and vice versa so that learners can understand and remember Aphorism easily and quickly. This finding is also one of great help to learners in translating Aphorism from English into Uzbek and contrarily.

Also, learners could benefit from studying aphorisms in other language. First and foremost, the learning of aphorisms could be a key element in the language acquisition process. Second, aphorisms could provide a snapshot of other cultures which allows a more thorough understanding of both language and culture. Once we have obtained a profound knowledge of English aphorisms, we could improve the mutual understanding in a conversation between us and our friends English-speaking countries; thus. misunderstanding from and communication breakdown could be avoided. Last but not least, learning the aphorisms of the target language enables a better insight into authentic texts and helps us really enjoy our reading. It is really frustrating if we have to constantly stop and check for the meaning of a aphorism that we come across in the process of reading an English novel in which a full range of idioms and aphorisms is used. It is obvious that in this case the pre learning of English aphorisms is extremely beneficial to our achieving the full pleasure and understanding.

As mentioned in the previous chapters, aphorisms reflect the cultural features of each nation which are closely connected with its cultural tradition. In this thesis, some translation hints relating to literal translation and figurative translation could be given to help Uzbek learners of English deal with Aphorism.

Literal translation, also known as direct translation, is the transference of a text directly from one language into another language when the original version almost accords with the target language in the form of vocabulary and grammatical

structure. The aim of literal translation is to reserve the national flavour of the source language aphorisms, while not violating the linguistic principles of the target language. Many English aphorisms could be translated in a literal way, for example, "Prevention is better than cure" could be literally translated into Uzbek like "Даволангандан кўра олдини ол". It is a preferred version of translation because it fulfills the function of communicative translation yet retains the original flavour of the source aphorism.

Because of the influence of cultural factors, we cannot keep the literal meaning and imagery meaning of the source language. Therefore, translators should make a great effort to adjust the figurative image, rhetorical devices and the cultural characteristics of the original aphorisms to fit those of the target language aphorisms.

Dealing with the figurative meaning of a aphorism, we would like to suggest some approaches to the translation of Aphorism:

• Interpreting the denotative meaning of the given Aphorism in the source language.

• Clarifying the connotative meaning of the Aphorism mentioned.

• Elucidating or explaining the general meaning of the aphorisms in the given context in terms of semantic features.

• Finding the Uzbek equivalent under the light of the cultural characteristics.

Due to the restriction of this kind of aphorisms- Aphorism, only 300 samples in the two languages are collected. Moreover, because of the limited time, knowledge and references, the study can only examine some certain characteristics of English and Uzbek Aphorism such as the structures, syntactic classes, kinds of meanings and semantic types, so it has not reached the expected depth as it should.

This thesis is an attempt to make a detailed analysis of syntactic and semantic features of English and Uzbek Aphorism. Additionally, much of our effort has been made to point out the similarities and differences between two languages. However, within the limitation of time and materials, the study is by no means complete and still remains some aspects waiting investigation. We strongly suggest further studies on the following areas:

- A Study of Pragmatic and Cultural Aspects of Aphorisms in English.
- A Study of Linguistic Features of Comparison Aphorisms in English.

Used Literatures:

1. Каримов И.А. "Чет тилларини ўрганиш тизимини янада такомиллаштириш тўғрисида". ПК – 1875. Халқ сўзи, 2012б 11 декабрьб 1- бет.

 Каримов И.А. Юксак маънавият – енгилмас куч. – Тошкент: Маънавият, 2008. – Б. 87.

3. Akhmanova O.S. Syntax. Theory and Mathods. – Moscow: 1972, – 218 p.

4. Buranov J., Yusupov U., Iriskulov M., Sadikov A. The Grammatical Structure of English. – Tashkent: 1973, 42 p.

5. Бўронов Ж. Инглиз ва она тиллари киёсий типологияси. – Тошкент: 1983.

6. Бархударов Л.С. Структура простого предложения современного английского языка. – М: 1966.

7. Blokh M.Y. A Course in Theoretical English Grammar. – Москва: Высшая школа, 1983, – 303 р/

8. Долгова О.В. Синтаксис как наука о построении речи. – М.: 1980.

9. Иванова И.П., Бурлакова В.В., Почепцов Г.Г. Теоретическая грамматика современного английского языка. – М.: 1981.

10. Irtenyeva N.F., et. al. A Theoretical English Grammar. (Syntax) HScPH, 1969.- 345 p.

11. Лайонз Дж. Введение к дескриптивному лингвистику. – М.: 1978.

12. Почепцов Г.Г. Конструктивный анализ структуры предложения. – Киев, 1971.

13. Слюсарева Н.А. Проблемы функционального синтаксиса современного английского языка. – М.: 1981.

14. Смирницкий А.И. Синтаксис английского языка. – М.: 1957.

15. Ярцева В.Н. Исторический синтаксис английского языка. – М.: 1961.

16.Kaushanskaya V.L. et. al. A Grammar of the English Language. –L.: 1963. – 314 p.

17. Khaimovich B.S., Rogovskaya B.I. A Course in English Grammar. – М.: Вқсшая школа, 1963. – 210 р.

18. Adams V. An Introduction to Modern English Word Structure. – London, 1973.
19. Allerton D.J. Essential Grammatical Theory. –L.: 1979, – 322 p.

20.Azar B.S. Understanding and Using English Grammar. Paramount Communications Co, Englewood, New Jersey, 1989, – 485 p.

21. Close R.A. Reference Grammar for Students of English. – Lnd: 1977, –412 p.

22. Curne G.O. Grammar of the English Language. – New York: 2005, – 412 p.

23.Gordon E.M., Krilova I.P. A Grammar of Present Day English. – M.: Higher School Publishing House, 1974. – 346 p.

24.Kobrina N.A., Korneyeva. E.A. An Outline of Modern English Syntax. – M.: 1965. – 345 p.

25.Lich G., Svartnik K.G. A Communicative Grammar of English. – M.: 1983. – 280 p.

26.Raymond Murphy. English Grammar in Use. Cambridge University Press. 2004. – 280 p.

27. Quick R. et. al. A University Grammar. – M.: Visshaya shkola, 1983. – 392 p.

28. Scheurveghes G. Present Day English Syntax. – London: Longman, 1962. – 418 p.

29. Potter S. Language in Modern World. – Harmondsworth, 1960. – p. 82.

30. Strong B. Modern English Structure. –London: 1962. – P. 82.

Internet sites:

31.http://wikipedia/phraseologicalunits/english/htm

32.http://englishgrammar/phraseology/htm

33.http://linnguaculturology/aspects/studymatter/htm

34.englishphraseology\edu\co\htm

35.www.englishclub.ru\ complexsentences.html